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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This house was built c. 1856 by Deacon West, a pioneer blacksmith in the area. It is 
a three-story octagonal house with Italianate features, built of thick cement walls 
covered with rough-swirled white plaster. With its dark brown painted trim and general 
simplicity of design, it possesses a distinctive charm. Located near the crest of the 
only hill in Pewaukee, it overlooks the village and Pewaukee Lake on which the community 
is located at the northeastern shore* Because it is built into a hillside, part of 
the house appears to be two stories high and part three stories. Extending westward 
from the north side of the porch is a random rubble limestone retaining wall separating 
the higher grade of the lot from the lower*

The roof is low-pitched, octagonal, hipped, and roofed with metal with raised seams* 
At the crest is a small, slightly elevated, octagonal, metal-roofed cap where there 
may once have been a cupola* One face of the cap has an opening allowing access to 
the roof. Three chimneys rise at about equal distances from one another,, and cor­ 
responding fireplaces may be found on two of the three floors inside the house. The 
eaves are moderately bread, denticulated, and supported by.two brackets on each face 
of the octagon. Windows are mostly 2/2 double 'hung sash* Those of the third story 
have shaped lintels with a keystone and have somewhat broadened sills. Those of the 
second or main story have a curved hood and even more decorative sills—all such trim 
being of wood.

The main entry is at second floor level on the southwest, and has a simple hip roofed 
porch with a double round-arched doorway above and a small balustraded deck at third 
floor level. The second floor (main) entry is also a pair of round-arched doors* 
The roof of the porch is supported by wall brackets at either end and by four wood 
columns with a carpentered balustrade at the outer edge. Simple square timbers— 
apparently 4" x 4"—support the porch floor from the ground level below. .At ground 
level under the porch is a single doorway leading into the first floor level.

At the east side of the house is a two-story wing, the lower part of which is the 
garage and the second floor portion a sun porch with multi-pane fixed window sash.

Around 1873 the inside of the house was largely destroyed by fire. With not much 
more than the original 18" cement walls left standing, Colonel N. P. Inglehart, 
a later owner, rebuilt the house in its present form later the same year and 
probably imparted to the house the features which enhance its appearance today.

Although the house is in rather poor repair today, with portions of the outside 
plaster cracked and some fallen off, it is still an attractive, striking residence 
with an excellent location in a pleasant, small village.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of the Deacon West Octagon House is purely architectural. Although 
it does net embody many of Orson Fowler*s precepts except for being made of cement 
and being octagonal, it is a good, simple adaptation of the style and has been preserved 
in reasonably good condition and served as a residence for a number of families over 
the years. And while Wisconsin has probably more octagonal houses than any other state 
outside New York and Massachusetts (Perrin), the Beacon West House is the only such 
house to be found in the third most populous county of the state, Waukesha County. 
It is probably the most prominent landmark in Pewaukee and is indeed a striking and 
pleasing example of its style.
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